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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

(All figures in Rs. Lacs)

Particulars Years

2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 2000-01
Income from Production 3476133 | 31,123.18 | 26,833.43 | 28,171.73 | 19,751.65
(Sales stock adj)
Add: Other Income 356.34 542.96 500.53 277.70 274.28
Corporate Output 35,117.67 | 31,666.14 | 27,333.96 | 28/449.43 | 20,025.93
Less: RMC 21,837.11 | 20,425.86 | 17,863.41 | 18,981.08 | 13,589.88
Less: Mfg. & Other Expenses 506158 | 516695 | 4,552.60 | 4553501 | 2,688.55
(Without Employee Cost)
Gross Value added 7,588.98 6,073.33 491795 | - 4,933.34 3,747.50
Less: Depreciation 1,342.64 1,132.18 641.12 515.59 273.12
Net Value added 6,246.34 | 4,941.15 | 4,276.83 | 4,417.75 | 3,474.38
Allocation of Net Value added
To Personnel (Employee Cost) 2,635.29 2,258.99 2,010.90 2,180.03 1,333.81
To Government (Tax) 136.46 (918.86) (15.02) (29.67) (81.52)
To Creditors (Interest) 3,213.64 3,090.47 2,163.54 2,128.75 L7753.25
To Investors (Dividend) - = 333.97 233.83 181.30
To company (Retained Earnings) 260.96 510.55 (216.56) (95.19) 267.55
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Sixty Fifth
Annual Report and the Audited Statements of Accounts of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

A. Financial Results:

Particulars 2004-2005  2003-2004

Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Gross Turnover 39,891.58 33,734.30
Gross Operating Profit 4,966.97 3987.13
Profit / (Loss) for the year 279.07 652.24
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 791.05 530.09

B. Manufacturing Results :

Sugar Division :

1)  The results for the division are as follows:

Particulars Season Financial Year
200405 200304 | 200405 | 2003-04

Start of Crushing Season/

Financial Year 11.09.2004(26.09.2003 |01.04.2004 |01.04.2003

Close of Crushing Season/

Financial Year 18.05.2005{28.02.2004 |31.03.2005 [31.03.2004

Crushing Duration (Days) 206 156 158 208

Cane Crushed (MT) 14,07,682) 11,20,631| 11,50,950 | 14,66,585

Recovery (%) 10.42 10.79 10.76 10.77

Raw Sugar Processed (Qtls) | 1,75,030 0 8,250 0

Recovery (%) 96 0 96 0

Sugar Bagged (Qtls) 16,49,480| 12,21,700| 12,51,440 | 1580120
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Increase in Crushing:

Inspite of third consecutive drought that had severely reduced
planting of cane during the previous years, primarily affecting
areas of Maharashtra, Karnataka and Tamil Nadu, your company
increased its Crushing from 11 Lac M. T. in Season 2003-04 to
14 Lac M.T. in Season 2004-05. This has been mainly due to
sustained Investments made by the company in the capital assets
through the introduction of automation and capacity
Debottlenecking, increasing the sugarcane crushing capacity.

To fill the gap between demand and reduced local supply, to
make use of the existing enhanced facilities and for generating
positive contribution to the operations, your company has
imported 41,350 M.T. of Raw Sugat to be processed during the
supplementary season 2004-05, off-season 2004-05 and the
sugar season 2005-06. The Recovery on Raw Sugar has been
96%.

Increase in Sugar Production:

Particulars Karnataka | India Company
Season 2004 — 05 (lacs M.T)) 11.00% 127.00%* 1.65
Season 2003 — 04 (lacs M.T.) 10.40 139.95* 1.22
Increase/(Decrease) +0.60 (12.95) 0.43
Increase/(Decrease) % 5.77 (9.25) 35

* Estimate according to SISMA
** Estimate according to ISMA
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Recovery :

On account of the prevailing drought the recovery also fell from
10.79% for the previous season to 10.42% for the crushing
season 2004-05,

Particulars Karnataka India Company
Season 2004 - 05 10.30* 10.23* 10.42
Season 2003 - 04 10.21* 10.22* 10.79
Increase/(Decrease) 0.09 0.01 0.37)
Increase/(Decrease) % 0.88 0.10 (3)

* Estimate according to ISMA
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Increase in Sugar Turnover :

Sugar Sales during the year increased from Rs. 19,658 lacs for the
previous year to Rs 24,492 lacs. Thus it increased by 25%,
inspite of third consecutive drought. This was essentially due
to increase in the free sale sugar prices.

SUGAR SALES |0

2003-04 2004-05

Financial Year

Distillery & Chemical Division :
The Distillery is now versatile and has the ability to produce

Rectfied Spirit, Anhydrous Alcohol, Extra Neutral Alcohol and
any other type of Alcohol that the market desires.

New Specialty Chemicals have been added to the product range
and are contributing effectively. These are exported across the
globe and your company has procuted orders worth more than
Rs. 20 Crores for the same. Sustained demand internationally
will lead the company to double the capacity of these Chemicals.

Your Company's Turnover of the Distillery & Chemical Division
increased from Rs. 10,378 lacs for the previous year 2003-04 to
Rs 13,032 lacs during the year ended March 31st, 2005. This was
mainly on account of commissioning of Extra Neutral Alcohol
at the Sameerwadi Distillery Unit supplemented with better
realization and volume growth.

DISTILLERY & CHEMICALS TURNOVER | O]
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Drought conditions continued during the year in Maharashtra
& Karnataka, adversely affecting the availability of molasses.
The prices of molasses in Maharashtra have more than doubled.
To combat the same the Company has proactively shifted its
procurement policy from local purchase of Molasses and
Specially Denatured Spirit (SDS) to directimport of SDS and to
some extent Molasses.

Organic Manure :

The Bio-Compost marketed under the Brand name
"Bhumilabh" has given outstanding results & has been
certified by "Ecocert". This organic certification will now enable
the product to be accepted and exported to foreign destinations.

Co-generation Division:

Your Company's Turnover of the Co-generation Division
decreased from Rs. 3,369 lacs for the previous year 2003-04 to
Rs 1,878 lacs during the year ended March 31st, 2005, This was
mainly due to non-availability of raw material i.e. Bagasse, due
to drought in our factory region.

To obviate the problem of low cane availability during the current
financial year, the company has made arrangements for
procurement and feeding alternate agro fuels along with online
bagasse. We have also converted our existing boiler to fire coal
as an additional fuel. The coal firing will give us a steady means
of power production independent of vagaries of nature.

Your company is entitled for the Financial year 2004-05 the rate
of Rs 3.65 per kwh of the energy exported as per the Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA) executed with Karnataka Power
Transmission Corporation Limited (KPTCL), on 8th October,
1999. However during the year under review KPTCL has paid
the rate of Rs 3.16 per Kwh upto 21st July, 2004 and thereafter
KPTCL unilaterally further reduced the tariff to Rs 2.80 per Kwh.

The company has contested the unilateral reduction in the tariff
before The Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka. Karnataka
Electricity Regulatory Commission (KERC) has awarded that
PPAs approved by KERC before 10th June, 2004 are eligible for
tariff at MNES rate.

C. Financial Re-Engineering:

The Company had to undertake a comprehensive Financial
Re-engineering on account of the difficulties caused by
continuous drought for three years. The same had dented
the Cash Flow of the Company to a considerable extent,
Further, the liquidity pressure was compounded with
Karnataka Power Transmission Corporation Ltd. (KPTCL)
not paying as per the rates contracted in the PPA.

Hence a Re-Engineering under the Corporate Debt
Restructuring (CDR) mechanism of the Reserve Bank of
India was undertaken to realign the Interest rate according
to prevailing market rates and refix the Term Liabilities in
tune with the projected future cash flows. The final sanction
from the CDR cell was received by your company vide letter
CDR/1705 dated March 31, 2005, subject to sanction from
respective participating lenders. The said restructuring will
enable the company to consolidate its liquidity position.
The company is grateful to all the participating lenders for
their timely support and co-operation.

D. Dividends:

Even though there is an improved performance during
the year under review, in order to conserve the resources,
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the directors regret their inability to recommend any
Dividend on Equity and Preference Shares for the year ended
31st March, 2005.

Enhancement of Equity Share Capital:

Your Company made private placement of 65,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at par, aggregating to
Rs. 650 lacs, which includes Inter Corporate Deposits
converted into equity Rs 400 lacs according to the
restructuring package envisaged under the CDR mechanism,
The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the company after
this issue now is Rs.2,498.25 lacs.

Itis proposed to convert the Preference Share Capital into
Equity Share Capital, subject to the approval of preference
shareholders.

Projects:
Sugar Division

In our continuous mission for Innovation led Value
Addition, we are implementing project of Ethyl Lactate
plant having capacity of 450 M.T. Ethyl Lactate is an eco
friendly solvent. Basic raw materials for this product are
Molasses, Alcohol & Calcium Carbonate, This project has
been funded by Sugar Technology Mission (STM).

Distillery & Chemical Division
i)  Extra Neutral Alcohol (ENA) :

In line with the trend to make multipurpose
distilleries, catering to requirement of Alcohol for
industrial, beverage & fuel use, your company started
the setting up ENA plant of 40 KI. pet day capacity at
Sameerwadi in the previous year, which has been
stabilized this year. The quality of the ENA
manufactured by your Company has been widely
accepted well over the existing manufacturers.

ii) Distillery Revamping :

Your company is also planning to undertake the above
project atits factory at Sameerwadi. This will resultin
increased recovery of alcohol from molasses.

iii) Ethyl Acetate & Paraldehyde :

Due to huge demand including the international
demand, the Company has increased the production
capacity of Ethyl Acetate from 12,000 M.T. per annum
to 18,000 M.T. per annum. Similarly Paraldehyde has
been increased from 300 M.T. per annum to 600 M.T.
per annum.

iv) Pollution Control :

To improve the Water Recovery and for greater
Environmental concerns, the Company has installed
Reverse Osmosis (RO) Plant at Sakarwadi which will
also reduce the water consumption i.ec. recycling of
spent wash.

G. Auditors' Report :

The notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors'
Repott are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not call for
any further comments.

Auditors ;

M/’s. Desai Saksena & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Auditors of the company, retite and being eligible, confirm
their willingness for reappointment.

Cost Auditors :

M/s. BJ.D. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants, have been
reappointed as Cost Auditors of the Company.

Audit Commitee :

Audit Committee of your Company consists of three
Ditectors, viz.

1)  ShriIndubhai C. Patel - Chairman
2)  ShriSamir S. Somaiya
3)  Shri Kailash Pershad

The terms of reference to the Audit Committee include
periodical discussions with Auditors about Internal
Control System, Scope of Audit, Review of Risk factors,
Major Accounting Policies and teview of Annual Financial
Statement before submission to the Board.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement :

Pursuant to section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, the
Directors hereby confirm that:

() Accounting Standards have been followed alongwith
proper explanation relating to material departures.

(i) The accounting policies of the Company have been
consistently followed and estimates have been made
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end
of the financial year and of the profit of the Company
for the year under review.

(i) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

(iv) Annual accounts are prepared on a going concern basis,
Insurance :

The Company has made necessary arrangements for
adequately insuring its insurable assets.

. Fixed Deposits :

There has been a tremendous jump in the Fixed Deposits
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raised by the company during the Financial Year 2004-05
from Rs. 179 Lacs to Rs. 890 Lacs. The said Fixed Deposits
are mostly received from the Cultivators who supply cane
to the company, re-imposing the faith they have on the
company, a relationship built over three decades of
sustained business and the murtual trust between the
cultivators and the management of the company.

. Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) :

With the twin objectives of enhancing the efficiency of the
operations and becoming cost effective, the Company
offered VRS to the employees of the Company. Total 174
employees have been relieved under said scheme with effect
from 15th April, 2005. The VRS was implemented in a
spirit of co-operation and understanding. So much so,
that at the Sugar Technologist Association of India (STAT)
sugar conference, the company's presentation on VRS and
improved productivity, was jointly authored by the Union
leader and the CEO.

Directors :

Dr. K. V. Raghavan, Prof. Rooshikumar Pandya and
Shri PICR. Nair tetite from the Board by rotation and
being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.
Mr. Viney Kumar has been nominated by Industrial
Development Bank of India Ltd. in place Mr.
K.H.Viswanathan.

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation of
the co-operation, assistance extended and setvices rendered
by Mr. K.H.Viswanathan during the tenure of his office as
Nominee Director.

Particulars of Employees:

As required by the provisions of section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 (as amended) the names and
other particulars of employees are set out in the annexure
to the Directors' Report.

Disclosure with Respect to Conservation of Energy,
etc:

The particulats about conservation of energy, etc., pursuant
to the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
to the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, are set out in the
Annexure forming part of this report.

People & the Community :

The company maintains strong and active relationship with
its suppliers and customers and attributes this to the
experience, ability and dedication of its people. Your
company is a major employer in its region and it recognises
its responsibility and commitment for the development
to the community. The company recruits personnel locally
and actively supports education, health, welfare, emergency
services and the environment. There is encouragement to
preserve and improve rural sports, culture and the arts.

As a part of our corporate values, we believe in supporting
and making contribution to the growth and development
of rural sectot in India.

Low Cost Drip Irrigation:

Ttis needless to mention the water saving and enhancement
of cane productivity by using micro-irtigation system,
Despite these merits, adoptability of drip irrigation system
in sugarcane is very negligible owing the high cost of the
system. Your Company has made rigorous efforts to bring
Low Cost Irrigation system to the farmers. This system is
costing Rs.8,000 to Rs. 10,000 per acre against Rs.20,000 to
Rs.25,000 per acre, in case of others. In addition it will
suffice all the technical requirement of high cost drip systems.
Micro Irrigation systems viz., Drip and Sprinkler systems
are been tested and trials are conducted, which are showing
effective results.

Water Harvesting:

The company has actively undertaken Water Harvesting
Program in Sameerwadi area to conserve and develop the
natural resources viz., soil and water, with active participation
of the farmers. The Sultanapur-Handigund Micro-Shed
was demarcated and check dams were built across the nala
resulting in substantial improvement of water level in open
well and bore wells as well. Efforts were made in imparting
training to the water users falling in this micro-watershed
area so as to enhance their capacity building and adopt new
crop techniques .The supply of fruits and trees species to
the beneficiaries of this was done as a holistic approach for
sustainable growth of the area.

Seminar for Panchayat members:

Your company has taken a lead role to disseminate the
various facets of the Panchayat, including the area of
empowerment given to their members. This was otganized
in the name of "Abbudayad Ariu - Acharaneya Samavesha",
which was attended in large, covering many villages and
panchayats. Seminars were conducted covering diverse topics
like Education, Aids, Work Ethics, Decentralization of
Power and development, Role of press in rural
development etc.
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Adoption of high cane yield technology in sugarcane:

Declining cane yields coupled with increased costs of
production pose great concern in sugar industry. Hence,
there is reason to look at some of the agronomic
manipulations to reduce production costs and maximize
yields. Therefore, a participatory rural appraisal has been
conducted over an area of 2000-3000 actes confirming the
benefits of altered crop geometry along with adoption of
other recommended practices by i Increasing cane yield by
20-30 from the existing ones. This project was carried in
the Sameerwadi area, by way of field demonstrations,
training to farmers and field staff coupled with the supply
of required inputs.
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Industrial Relations :

The Company maintains harmonious and cordial relations
with its workers and staff in all its Divisions, which have
enabled it to achieve this performance level on all fronts.

T. Appreciation:

Your Directors place on record their sincere apprediation of
the co-operation and assistance extended by the Company's
Bankers viz. Bank of India, Union Bank of India, Andhra
Bank, Industrial Development Bank of India Ltd., State
Bank of India, Bank of Baroda, Syndicate Bank, ICICI
Bank Ltd,, and the Financial Institutions viz. Sugar
Development Fund, Sugar Technology Mission, SICOM
Ltd., as well as the Karnataka & Maharashtra Governtment,
customers, suppliers, labour and the staff of the company.

Subsidiary Companies U/S.212 of The Companies Act:

The Company's Investment in the Subsidiary Companies
Is insignificant. During the year under review, none of the
subsidiary companies had undertaken any operations, and
the Balance Sheet exposure is immaterial. As per para 4.3
of the Accounting Standard (AS) 21 "Consolidated Financial
Statements", issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, are intended to apply only on material
items.

In view of the above, Consolidated Audited Statement of
Accounts of Subsidiary Companies are not provided.
However Statement relating to Subsidiary Companies i.e.
Godavari Investment & Finance Corporation Limited and
Padmanabh Agencies Pyt. Ltd., pursuant to Section 212
of the Companies Act, 1956 are attached to the Balance
Sheet.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Place : Mumbai
Date : 6" September, 2005.

5. K. SOMAIYA
Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Statement under section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Rule 2 of the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975
in regards to the employees :

(A) EMPLOYED THROUGHOUT THE YEAR AND RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION IN THE AGGREGRATE OF NOT
LESS THAN RS. 24 LACS.

Name of Designation Remuneration Nature of the Qualifications Date of Age Last Employment
the Employee and nature Received Employment & Experience Commencement held by such
of duties whether of the of Employment Employce
contractual Employce before joining
Rs.) or otherwise the company

Dr. S. K. Somaiya Chairman &  50,55,853/-  Contractual BSc. (Hons),
Managing LL.B, 01-06-1999 77 yrs.  Somaiya Organics
Director DSc. (honoris causa) (India) Ltd,,
Chairman &
Managing Director

(B) EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY WHO WERE EMPLOYED PART OF THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW AND WERE IN
RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION FOR THAT YEAR IN THE AGGEGRATE OF NOT LESS THAN RS. 2,00,000/- PM.

ok WL, *k*

NOTES : Remuneration received as shown in the statement includes salary, bonus, commission, house rent allowance ot value for
perquisites for accommodation, motor car perquisite and other allowances like contribution to provident fund, leave travel
facility and reimbursement of medical expenses as applicable.

By Otder of the Board of Directors,

Place : Mumbai
h S. K. SOMAIYA
Date : 6 September, 2005. Chairman & Managing Directot
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information in accordance with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars, in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988
and Forming part of Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

Conservation of Energy / Technology Absorption / Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.
Sugar & Co-generation Division :
&) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :

1. Installing one - 3 MVA transformer to utilise the power generated from Co-gen, instead presently generating power in sugar plant
which in turn will save bagasse.

2. Replacing the present economiser of Boiler No. 7 of sugar plant with that of higher heating surface to improve boiler efficiency.
3. Installing Vapour Line Juice Heater (VLJH) for KI evaporator to utilise waste heat of vapours of last body of evaorator.
4. Installing liquid to liquid heat exchanger to heat raw juice after VLJH to utilise waste heat of vapour condensates.

5. Making arrangement for second stage dilution of the flocculant addition with clear juice instead of hot water to reduce steam
consumption.

6. Touseclearjuice to substitue all water use on the A-Pans to reduce steam consumption.
FORM “A”
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Current Year Previous Year
@D POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION :
1. ELECTRICITY:
(a) Purchased :
Units KWH - a2
Total Amount Rs. - 1,70,100%
Rate Rs./KWH g s
*Demand Charges paid for HT-1, thereafter disconnected.
Power is taken from Co-generation facility, -
MD deposit recovered after disconnection
(b) Own Generation :
1) Through Diesel Generator
Units . KWH 2,23,906 65,542
Units per Litre of Diesel Qil KWH/Ltr. 4,19 4.68
Cost per Unit Rs./KOWTH 7.21 5.00
i)  Through Steam Turbine Generator (Sugar Plant)
Units KWH 49.41,276 98,12,271
Units per K. G. of Bagasse KWH 0.16 0.15
Cost per Unit Rs./KWH 4.69 1.29
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(1)) CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF SUGAR PRODUCTION :

(¢) Power taken from Co-generation :
Units
Total Amount
Cost per Unit
(d) Steam taken from Co-generation :
Units
Total Amount
Cost per Unit
OTHER / INTERNAL GENERATIONS:
a)  Fire Wood
Total Cost
Rate /Unit
b)  Bagasse
Purchased
Produced & Ultilised for Power Generation
Total Cost

Rate (Average)

Electricity
Coal (IInd Grade)
Fire Wood

Bagasse

Distillery & Chemical Division :

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

@)

(b)
(©)

Energy Conservation measures taken:

Rs./KWH

M.T.

Rs./M.T.

M.T.

Rs.

Rs./M.T.

MT.
MT

Rs.

Rs./M.T.

KWH/QTLS.
M.T./QTLS.
MT./QTLS.
M.T./QTLS.

1,79,28,280
2,93,37,847
1.64

1,72,298
5,61,69,148
326.00

160.00
1,87,998.25
1,174.99

NIL
31582.59
2,36,86,943
750

18.45
NIL
0.000007
0.0014

Methane gas recovery plant from spent wash of Distillery- working was satisfactory.

Overall steam to coal ratio decreased from 4.66 to 4.52 during this year.

2,10,14,000
2,28,66,156

1.09

2,20,002
7,40,22,808
336.46

535.36
6,34,262.40

1,184.74

NIL
64,354.78
1,28,70,957

200

19.55
NIL
0.000339

0.04

400 TR Chiller utilisation helped us to run the plant normally during summer, resulting in increased productivity.
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FORM “A”
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

For Chemical Division For Distillery Division

Current Year Previous Year  Current Year Previous Year

(I) POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION:
1 ELECTRICITY:

(a) Purchased :

Unit KWH 91,54,870 1,20,31,520 53,562 69,110

Total Amount Rs. 3,42,57,347 4,59,03,417 9,93,522 10,32,933

Rate Rs. /KWH 3.74 3.82 18.55 14.95
(b) Own Generation :

1) Through Diesel Generator

(Kirloskar D.G.Set)

Unit KWH 1,78,596 4,65,276 1,47,288 3,07,044

Diesel Consumption. Litrs. 52,538 1,55,138 58,802 87,130

Unit per litre of diesel oil KWH 3.40 3.00 250 3.52

Cost pet Unit. Rs./KWH - 8.09 10.25 6.51
1i) Through Steam Engine

(BM Engine & Turbine)

Unit per K.G . KWH 34,21,250 38,02,793 15,19,310 20,44,528

Cost per unit. Rs./KWH

After generation of power, the steam is consumed fully in the
process. So, there is no appreciable cost for power generation. In
practice, we get power as a by-product with nominal / low cost
per unit.

(c) Power taken from Co-generation :

Unit

Total Amount

Rate

(d) Steam taken from Co-generation :

Unit

Total Amount

Rate

KWH
Ltrs,
Rs./KWH

M.T.

Rs.
Rs./M.T.
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3,67,550
10,21,983
2.78

15,089
64,14,906
425

1,573
10,20,345
649
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For Chemical Division For Distillery Division
Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

2 COAL(B/C/D GRADE):
Coal consumed ( Qty) M.T. 259778 27,640 253 826
Total Cost Rs. 6,43,85,950 6,30,79.455 7,30,522 21,62,802
Average Rate Rs./M.T. 2,498 2,282 2,887 2,618
Bagasse Cosumed M.T. NIL NIL 14,358 16,964
Total Cost Rs. NIL NIL  1,63,64,787 1,68,77,492
Average Rate Rs./M.T NIL NIL 1,139.73 994.88
Biogas consumed M3 27,39,098 1,11,19,377 36,13,340 50,60,700
Total Steam generation M.T. 1,30,366 1,86,743 42818 52,787
Steam generation per MT of coal/ Bagasse M.T. 4.52 4.66 2.93 2.84
Fire Wood consumed M.T. NIL NIL NIL 815
Total Cost Rs. NIL NIL NIL 9,40,862
Average Rate Rs. NIL NIL NIL 1,154.43
Firewood Chips MT. NIL NIL 23 20
Total Cost Rs. NIL NIL 47,649 32,000
Average Rate Rs. NIL NIL 2,100 1,600

(II) CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION :

i) Alcohol :
Production KIL. 4,955 26,195 9,248 20,869
Electricity KWH 11,71,588 52,64,938 10,24,346 21,85,614
Units / KL of Prod. KHW/K.L. 232.37 200.99 111 105
Coal M.T. 674 2,766 253 826
Bagasse M.T. NIL NIL 14,358 16,964
Firewood MT. NIL NIL NIL 815
Firewood Chips M.T. NIL NIL 23 20
Biogas M3 27,39,098 1,11,19,377 36,13,340 50,60,700
Coal Ratio M.T./K.L. 0.74 0.58 1.58 0.89
Steam Ratio MT./KL. 3.34 2.70 3.23 2.53

ii) Acetaldehyde :
Production M.T. 14,594 16,807 NIL NIL
Electricity KWH 36,73,381 30,31,328 NIL NIL
Units / MT of Prod. KWH/M.T. 251.70 180.36 NIL NIL
Coal MT. 8,267 8,463 NIL NIL
Coal Ratio M.T./M.T. 0.57 0.50 NIL NIL
Steam Ratio M.T./M.T. 2.56 235 NIL NIL
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(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :

Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form “B”

FORM “B”
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT (R&D):

1) Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company :
R & D activities are related to upgradation of process technology, product improvement, new product development, recovery
improvement and cost reduction. R & D evaluates and indentifies cost effective process additives. R & D is involved in adoption of
new technologies.

2) Benefits derived as a result of above R & D :

a) R & D activities helped-in process improvement and quality of the product. Products are developed and commercialised.
R & D helps in cost reduction and resource conservation.

b) R & D activities have resulted in developing a product Ethyl Lactate which is non toxic, bindegradable and have excellent solvent
properties that can replace toxic and halogenated solvents for a wide range of industrial and consumeruses. The processs is based
onimproved strain for the fermentaion that permits low-cost synthesis of high-purity ethyl lactate and other lactate esters from
molasses which is used as a feedstock. The down stream process is developed in such a way that we get rid of impurities of starting
raw marerial. The Technology is being commercialized during the Financial Year 2004-05.

3) Future Plan of Action :

In future R & D efforts will be continued towards automation of different stations, expansion and balancing of plant and new product
development. Development of products based on agricultural and industrial bio-technology and molecular biology will be done. More
work in the area of new derivatives of Ethanol, Acetaldehyde and other speciality chemicals will be taken up.

4) Expenditure : Rs. in Lacs
i) Capital Rs. 35.57
1) Recurring Rs. 101.44
i) Total Rs. 137.01
iv)  Total R & D expenses as a percentage of total turnover 0.34%

TECHONLOGY ABOSRPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION :

R & D is involved in the adoption of new developments like - hydraulic drives, TRPF on mills, continuous pans and latest machines
and process control units. It is also involved in the application of cost - effective additives, process control and pollution control
equipments.

BENEFITS:

1. Adoption of new developments in milling plant and commissioning of continuous pans, and latest high capacity,energy efficient
machines enabled higher crushing rate and and better quality of sugar.

2. We have notimported any technology.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE:
Rs.in Lacs
EARNINGS : 905.90

OUTGO : 3947.42

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Place : Mumbat

Date :6" September, 2005.
S. K. SOMAIYA

Chairman & Managing Director
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of
THE GODAVARI SUGAR MILLS LIMITED,

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of THE GODAVARI SUGAR MILLS LIMITED as at 31st March, 2005 and the Profit
and Loss Account for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date. These
Financial Statements are the responsibility of the Company's Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit,

1. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statements presentations. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of subsection
(4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure hereto a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 4 and 5 of the said Order.

3. Further to out comments in the Annexure, referred to in paragraph 2 above, we report that :

a)  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

9  The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

d) Inouropinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report subject
to Refer to Note No. 8 of notes annexed to accounts regarding overstatement of Power Sales and corresponding
Debtors by Rs. 442.98 lacs, in case of adverse judgment by Hon’ble Karnataka High court.
comply with mandatory Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

€) Inouropinion, and based on information and explanation given to us ,none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March
2005 from being appointed as directors in terms of Clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

) Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts subject to
our remark in paragraph 3(d) above and note no. 9 regarding non confirmation of balances of Debtors ,Creditors,
certain loans from Financial Institution and Banks, certain advances read together with the Significant Accounting
Policies and other notes thereon give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required, and
presenta true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

1) inso farasitrelates to Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2005;
1) inso farasit relates to the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit for the year ended on that date; and
1) in so far as it relates to the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.
For DESAI SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Dr. S.N. Desai
Place I\g'urnbai Partner
Date:6 September, 2005. MNo.32546
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2 of the Auditors' Report of even
date.

o

(1)

(1)

In respect of its fixed assets;

(a) "The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of its fixed assets on the basis of available
information.

(b) As per the information and explanation given to us,
the Company has designed a phased programme for
the physical verification of its fixed assets and
accordingly a portion of the fixed assets are verified
every year to cover all the items in reasonable time
frame. Pursuant to said programme, during the year
also a portion of fixed assets of the Company has
been physically verified by the management. As
explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.

(© In our opinion, the company has not disposed off
a substantial part of fixed assets during the year and
the going concern status of the company is not

affected.
In respect of its inventories;

(a) As explained to us, inventories have been physically
verified during the year by the Management. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b)

In our opinion and according to information and

explanation given to us, the procedures of physical

verification of inventories followed by the

management are reasonable and adequate in relation

to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

(© The Company has maintained proper records of
inventories. As explained to us there were no material
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records.

According to the information and explanation given to us;

in respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted or taken

by the Company to/from companies, firms or other parties

covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the

Companies Act, 1956

a) The Company has not granted any loans during the
year to the parties covered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956

b) The Company has not taken loans from parties
covered in the register maintained under section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956

9  The Company has repaid inter cotporate deposit from
the companies listed in register maintained under
section 301, by way of conversion of said loans into
share capital.

d) The rate of interest paid on such inter corporate

deposits which were taken in eatlier years from the
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(tv)

v)

(vi)

companies listed in register maintained under section

301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie,

prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanation given to us, exception to some of the items
purchased are of a special nature and suitable alternative
sources do not exist for obtaining comparable quotations,
there are adequate internal control system commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
for the purchase of inventory, fixed assets and sale of
goods. During the course of our audit, we have not
observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses
in internal control.

In respect of the contracts or arrangements referred to in
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956;

) Inour opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements, that needed
to be entered in the register maintained under section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

b)  In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and having regard to our
comments in item (iv) above, the transactions made
in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of
rupees five lacs in respect of any party during the year
have been made at prices which are reasonable having
regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant
time.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, in our opinion the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 58 A and 58 AA of the Companies
Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under. To the best of
our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no order on the Company under
the aforesaid section has been passed by the Company Law
Board.

(vif) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal

audit system commensurate with the size and the nature
of its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained

by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government for maintenance of Cost Records under
section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to
the manufacture of sugar and industrial alcohol and are of
the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and
records have been maintained. We have not, however, made
a detailed examination of the records with a view to
determining whether they are accurate or complete. We are
informed that maintenance of cost records has not been
prescribed by the Central Government under section 209
(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the
Company's other product.



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

(ix) In respect of statutory dues:

a)

According to the information, explanations and
records of the Company, in respect of statutory and
other dues, the Company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales tax, Custom duty, Excise Duty, Cess and
any other statutory dues, applicable to it, with the
appropriate authorities during the year.

b) According to information and explanation given to

us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2005
for a period more than six months from the date of
becoming payable.

¢  Thedisputed statutory dues aggregating to Rs.321.77
that have not been deposited on account of disputed
mattets pending before appropriate authorities as at
31st March, 2005 are as under :
Particulars | Financial Year to | Forum Where Amount
which it Pertains | Dispute is pending  |(Rs. in Lacs)
Sales Tax 1990-91, 1991-92| Tribunal 85.601
(Central & State) | 1992-93 Commissioner 44.31
Cane 1996-97 Deputy Commissioner 29.85
Purchase Tax
State 1989-90 Deputy Commissioner 79.80
Excise Duty
State Excise 01.01.96 to Commissioner 10.81
supervision 30.09.2000 of State Excise
charges
Central 1997-98 Assistant Commissioner 0.04
Excise Duty
2001-02 to Tribunal 12.66
2003-04
2004-05 Assistant Commissioner 3.60
2004-05 Joint Commissioner 4.99
2003-04 Assistant Commissioner 4.30
Service 1997-98 to Commissioner 9.47
Tax 1998-99
Income 1996-97 to ITAT 36.33
Tax 1998-99

(x)  The Company does not have accumulated losses at the
end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash
losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) Based on our audit procedure and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks as
per Capital Debt Restructuring Package approved by
consortium of the Lenders.

(xif) According to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances
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on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and any other securities.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a
nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore the
provision of clause 4(xiii) of Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order 2003, are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) According to information and explanation given to us,
we are of the opinion that the Company is not trading
in shares, debentures and other investments. Therefore
the provision of clause 4(xiv) of Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order 2003, are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the terms and conditions on
which the Company has given guarantees which are in
the nature of tripartite arrangement for loans taken by
others from banks or financial institutions, are not, prima
facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, on an overall basis, the term
loans have been applied for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

(xvil) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet
of the Company, we are of the opinion that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used forlong term
investments. No long-term funds have been used to
finance short-term assets except permanent working
capital.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has made preferential allotment of
shares during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not issued any debentures during
the year, therefore, the paragraph 4(xix) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by way of public
issue during the year, therefore, the paragraph 4 (xx) of
the Order not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year that causes
the financial statements to be materially misstated.

For DESAI SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Dr. S.N. Desai
Partner
M. No. 32546

Place : Mumbai
Date : 6" September, 2005.



THE GODAVARI SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

(Rs.inlacs)

31.03.2005 31.03.2004
SCHEDULES
SOURCES OF FUNDS :
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS:
(a) Share Capital 1 4,298.25 3,648.25
(b) Reserves & Surplus 2 3,850.93 3,282.67
8,149.18 6,930.92
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 257.99 162.96
LOANS:
(a) Secured Loans 3 23,445,05 24,089.12
(b) Unsecured Loans 5,267.86 6,673.87
28,712.91 30,762.99
TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED 37,120.08 37,856.87
APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
FIXED ASSETS :
(a) GrossBlock 5 26,349.19 24,625.59
(b) Less:Depreciation 6,685.85 5,368.82
(9 NetBlock 19,663.34 19,256.77
(d) Workin Progress 1,361.17 919.57
21,024.51 20,176.34
INVESTMENTS 6 23.85 23.66
CURRENT ASSETS:
(a) Inventories 7 15,066.13 15,605.29
(b) Debtors 2,482.89 231617
(¢) Cash /Bank Balances 9 545,01 956.39
(d) Loansand Advances 10 2,800.46 3,154.51
20,894.49 22,032.36
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES : 11
(a) Current Liabilities 4,992.58 4,607.19
(b) Provisions -
4,992.58 4,607.19
Net Current Assets 15,901.91 17,425.17
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE :
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Deferred Revenue Expenditure 169.81 231.70
TOTAL FUNDS DEPLOYED 37,120.08 37,856.87
Notes Forming Part of the Accounts 19 - -
As per our Report of even date annexed
For DESAI SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES S. K. Somaiya Chairman & Managing Director
Charrered Accoustung Samir 8. Somaiya Exccutive Director
N. C. Satya )
Kailash Pershad Pirectors
Dr. S. N. Desai P. M. Kavadia Whole-time Dircctor
Partner
N. S. Khetan
Place : Mumbai General Manager Place : Mumbai
Date : 6™ September, 2005. (I' & A) Date : 6" September, 2005.
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

( Rs.inlacs)

31.03.2005 31.03.2004
SCHEDULES
INCOME:
Sales 12 39,891.58 33,734.36
Other Income 13 356.34 542.96
Increase / (Decrease) in Stock 14 (1,766.02) 487.80
38,481.90 34,765.12
EXPENDITURE : - -
Raw Material Cost 15 21,098.84 20,066.17
Putrchase of Goods for resale 738.27 359.69
Manufacturing and Other Expenses 16 8,313.58 Y2815
Excise Duty & Sugar Development Cess 3,364.24 3,098.98
Interest & Financial Charges 17 3,213.63 3,090.47
Depreciation 1,342.64 1,132.18
38,071.20 35,000.64
PROFIT /(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 410.70 (235.52)
Provision for Taxation :
Add/(Less) : Current Tax (36.60) -
Add/(Less) : Deferred Tax : Assets /(Liabilities) (95.03) 887.76
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR 279.07 652.24
Add/(Less) : Prior Period Items (13.28) (172.79)
Add : Excess/(Short) provision for taxation (4.83) 31.10
26096 51055
Balance Profit brought forward from last year 530.09 19.54
BALANCE PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 791.05 530.09
COMPUTATION OF COMMISSION PAYABLE TO
MANAGING DIRECTOR/EXCECUTIVE DIRECTOR 18
Notes Forming Part of the Accounts 19
As per our Report of even date annexed
For DESAT SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES S. K. Somaiya Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants

Dr. 8. N. Desai
Partner

N. §. Khetan
Place : Mumbai General Manager
Date : 6" September, 2005. (F&A)
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Samir S. Somaiya Executive Dircctor

N. C. Satya

Directors

Kailash Pershad

P. M. Kavadia

Place : Mumbai

Whole-time Director

Date : 6" September, 2005.



SCHEDULES FORMING THE PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

SCHEDULE 1 - SHARE CAPITAL :

AUTHORISED :
4,20,00,000 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs.10/- each 4,200.00
18,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- cach 1,800.00

ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL :
Equity Share Capital :

1,84,82,500 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs.10/- cach fully paid up. Out of
the above shares 1,13,00,000 shares are alloted as fully paid up
by way of Bonus Shares, by capitalisation of General Reserve 1,848.25

65,00,000 Add : 65,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each issued & fully paid up
during the year 650.00

12% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Share Capital :

18,00,000 Shares of Rs 100/- each

SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS :
(a) GENERAL RESERVE :
As per the last Balance Sheet
(b) SECURITIES PREMIUM RESERVE :
As per the last Balance Sheet

() GRANT-USAID (For Co-Generation Project) (Refer Note No. 10) :

As per the last Balance Sheet 296.24
Add : Received during the year 82.30

(d) CAPITAL RESERVE ;

As per the last Balance Sheet 623.25
Add : Addition during the year (Refer Note No. 10) 225.00

(e) PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
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31.03.2005

6,000.00

2,498.25

1,800.00

4,298.25

1,543.09

290.00

378.54

848.25

791.05

3,850,93

(Rs.inlacs)
31.03.2004

3,000.00

3,000.00

6,000.00

1,848.25

1.848.25

1,800.00

3,648.25

1,543.09
290.00

296.24

296.24

398.25
225.00

_—

623.25

530.09

D —

3,282.67



SCHEDULES FORMING THE PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

SCHEDULE 3 - SECURED LOANS:

A Sugar Division

From Banks

(a) Term Loans/Corporate Loans :

0
(if)
(ii1)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Bank of India
Union Bank of India
Andhra Bank

(All the above loans are Secured by hypothecation of all tangible
moveable Assets of the Company and first pari passu charge by way
of Equitable Mortgage of Fixed Assets of Company's Sugar unit at
Sameerwadi (excluding Agricultural Assets) and fully puaranteed by a
Director and Second Charge on Co-generation Assets.)

From Industrial Development Bank of India

(Secured by hypothecation by way of exclusive first charge on
specific Equipments.)

From SICOM Ltd.

(Secured by mortgage of Lakshmiwadi Land and hypothecation by
way of exclusive first charge of specific Assets)

From Sugar Technology Mission

(Secured by hypothecation by way of exclusive first charge on the
Assets to be created under the ERP project and second charge on the
stock of sugar, molasses and stores)

vii) From Sugar Technology Mission
g gy

(Secured by hypothecation by way of exclusive first charge on the
machinery, equipment tools & accessories under the Fthyl Lactate
Project)

(viit) From Sugar Development Fund

(Second charge on Sugar Block of Fixed Assets of Company's unit at
Sameerwadi)

(ix) Instalments Due for Purchase of Assets Under IR Finance

(Hypothecated against specific Assets)

(b) Cash Credit Account with

Q)
(ii)
(1ii)

Bank of India
Union Bank of India
Andhra Bank

(All the above loans are Secured First charge by hypothecation of raw
materials, Stocks of Sugar, Stores, Chemicals Spares, ete. and Equitable
Mortgage on Block of Fixed Assets of the Company’s Sugar unit at
Sameerwadi (excluding Agricultural Assets) pari passu with Term lenders
of Co-generation project and fully guaranteed by a Director.)

B Co-generation Division i
(a) Term Loans :

®
(1
(1)

Industrial Development Bank of India Ltd.
Andhra Bank
State Bank of India

(All the above Loans are secured by way of first charge on
Co-generation asscts and power receivables and first pari passu charge
alongwith Consortium Bankers by way of Equitable Mortgage on
Block of Fixed Assets of the Company’s Sugar unit at Sameerwadi
(excluding Agricultural Assets) )

757.85
722.25
350.87

1830.97

31.50

5.00

40.80

280.00

240.00

57.75

5,076.48
4,787.90

2,003.06

3,530.00
1,464.05

1,201.91

31.03.2005

*3,186.02

11,867.44

15,053.46

6,195.96

(Rs. in lacs)

31.03.2004

800.00
812.83
414.00

202683

94.50
63.56

61.20
72.00

940.00

13.79

3,271.88

5,129.86
4,801.07
2,107.15

12,038.08

15,309.96

3,450.00
1,741.92
1,306.64

7 6,498.56



SCHEDULES FORMING THE PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

SCHEDULE 3 (Continued...)

C Distillery & Chemical Division
From Banks
{(a) Term Loans :

(b)

®)

(iy)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Foretgn Currency Loan from Industrial Development Bank of India Ltd.

(Secured by Hypothecation by way of First Charge on the Specific
Equipments, First Charge on the Fixed Assets at Sameerwadi, Second
Charge on the Assets at Sakarwadi and Second Charge on the Current
Assets of the Company.)

Bank of Baroda - Corporate Loan

(Fquitable Mortgage of Fixed Assets at Sakarwadi on First pari passu
basis, except specified charge and second charge on Company's Iixed
Assets at Sameerwadi.)

Bank of Baroda - Turbine Loan

(Secured by hypothecation by way of first charge on Turbine 800 KW at
Sakarwadyi)

From SICOM Litd.

(Sccured by mortgage of specific Sakarwadi land and hypothecation by
way of first charge of specific assets)

Instalments Due for Purchase of Assets Under H.PFinance
(Hypothicated against specific Asscts)

Cash Credit & Bills Discounting Account with :

(1)
(i1)

Bank of Baroda

Syndicate Bank

(All the above Loans are Secured by First Charge by hypothecation of
Raw Materials, Stock-in Process, Finished goods, Chemicals, Stores,
Spares & Collateral security of Book Debts, Equitable Mortgage of Fixed
Assets & [Hypothecation on movable Machineries both present & future

at Sakarwadi and Second Charge on pari passu basis by way of Equitable

Mortgage on the Fixed Assets of Sameerwadi Unit & Second Charge on
the Fixed Assets acquired under Foreign Currency Loan from IDBI)

SCHEDULE 4 - UNSECURED LOANS :

(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)

Public Deposits

Deposits from Cultivators

Interest Free Sales Tax Loan from SICOM

Other Loans & Advances

I'rom Banks

From Others

(Rs. in lacs)

31.03.2005 31.03.2004

- 96.63

668.25 913.38
41.26 18.38
249.22 350.00
22.43 2571
981.16 1,404.10

1,003.16 710.24
211.531 166.26
1,214.47 876.50

23,445.05 24,089.12

889.73 179.21

569.74 911.19

243.59 256.50

2,478.34 3,724.78
1,086.46 1,602.19
3,564.80 5,326.97

5,267.86 6,673.87
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SCHEDULES FORMING THE PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

SCHEDULE 6 - INVESTMENTS (At Cost)
A Sugar Division

@

(®)

OTHER INVESTMENTS :

(QUOTED)
() 7200 Equity Shares of Bank of India (Market Value Rs. 7.43 lacs)
(i) 35900 Shares of UBI ( Market Value Rs. 39.63 lacs)

INVESTMENT IN SHARES OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY :
(UNQUOTED) .

(1) 5,000 Ordinary (Equity) Shates of Godavari Investment and
Finance Corporation Limited of Rs.100/- each

(i) 50,000 Equity Shates of Padmanabh Agencies Pvt. Ltd. for Rs.10/- each

B Distillery & Chemical Division

@

®)

SCHEDULE 7 - INVENTORIES (as taken,

(QUOTED)

() 1,500 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each of Oriental Power Cables Litd.
fully paid-up.

(if) 500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each of Kutch Salt & Allied Industries
Ltd. fully paid-up.

(i) 4500 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each of Somaiya Organics (India) Ltd.
fully paid-up.

(iv) 5000 Equity Share of Rs.10/- each at a Premium of Rs. 75/- per share
of Bank of Baroda fully paid (Market Value Rs. 10.80 Lacs)

(UNQUOTED)

(i) 210 Equity Shates of Rs.100/- each of The Book Centre Ltd.
fully paid-up.

(i) 80 Shares of Rs.25/- each of Raghuvanshi Co-operative Bank Ltd.

(ii) National Savings Certificate for Sales Tax at N agar

Less : Provision-for diminution in investments

(a) Sugar Division :

(i) Stocks-in-trade

(i) Stores, Chemicals and Spares, Packing Materials
(iil) Work in Process

(tv) Raw Materials

(b) Distillery & Chemical Division :

(1) Stocks-in-trade

(if) Stores, Chemicals and Spares, Packing Materials
(ui) Work in Process

(iv) Raw Materials

26

3.24
5.74

5.00
5.00

1.50

0.45

4.25

0.21

0.02
0.20

6.63
1.76

valued and certified by the Management) :

11,184.65
811.63
214.37

612.40

838.39
376.24
3.55

1,024.90

(Rs. in lacs)
31.03.2005 31.03.2004

3.24
5.74

8.98 8.98

5.00
5.00

10.00 10.00
1.50
0.01
0.45

4.25

0.21

12,823.05 14,382.39

2,243.08 1222.90

15,066.13 15,605.29



SCHEDULES FORMING THE PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

(Rs. in lacs)

31.03.2005 31.03.2004
SCHEDULE 8 - SUNDRY DEBTORS :
Sundry Debtors (Unsecured and considered good except otherwise stated) :
(a) Debts Outstanding for more than six months 693.33 536.75
(b) Other Debts 1,789.56 1,779.41
2,482.89 2,316.17
SCHEDULE 9 - CASH AND BANK BALANCES :
(a) Cash, Cheques and Drafts on hand and in transit 113.71 79.30
(b) In Current Account with Scheduled Banks 169.89 277.27
(¢) Fixed Deposits with Scheduled Bank
(Lodged with Excise Department, Bijapur) 0.05 0.05
(d) Fixed Deposits with Banks 261.36 599.77
545.01 956.39
SCHEDULE 10 - LOANS AND ADVANCES :
(Unsecured and considered good except otherwise stated)
(a) Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind or for value to be received 2,031.66 2,334.07
(b) Advances to Subsidiary Company 0.01 0.35
(c) Advance Income Tax ( Net of Provisions For Tax ) 529.62 532.09
(d) Deposit with Excise Authorities & Others 239.17 288.00
768.80 820.44
2,800.46 3,154.51
SCHEDULE 11 - CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS :
CURRENT LIABILITIES :
(1) Sundry Creditors & other liabilities 4,039.24 4,008.77
(i1) Interest accrued but not due 953.34 598.42
4,992.58 4,607.19
4,992.58 4,607.19
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2005

SCHEDULE 12 - SALES :

Sugar
Less : Inter Unit Transfer

Fertiliser

Molasses

Less : Inter Unit Transfer

Pressmud
Less : Inter Unit Transfer

Bagasse & others
Less : Inter Unit Transfer

Power & Steam
Less : Inter Unit Transfer

Chemicals

Alecohol/Tuel Alcohol/Bio Fert.

SCHEDULE 13 - OTHER INCOME :

Serap Sales

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net)
Income from Immovable Property
Sale of Farm Produce

Claims and Refund

Interest on Fixed Deposits and Others
Dividend

Miscellaneous Income

31.03.2005
24,491.62
__280.00

24,211.62

769.58
1,324.83
1,324.83
11.83
11.83
1,242.79
1,242.79
3,089.06
1,211.08

1,877.98

8,481.92

4,550.48

39,891.58

43.16

8.80

4.59

33.45

76.35

146.11

1.63

42.25

356.34
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(Rs. in lacs)
31.03.2004

19,658.14

19,658.14
329.89

607.81
607.81

16.31
16.31

755.30
755.30

4,347.87
979.09
3,368.78

6,524.69

3,852.86
33,734.36



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2005

(Rs. in lacs)

31.03.2005 31.03.2004
SCHEDULE 14 - INCREASE / (DECREASED) IN STOCK :
Closing Stock :
Sugar Division L 11,399.02 13,442.04
Distillery & Chemical Division 841.93 564.93
12,240.95 14,006.97
Less
Opening Stock :
Sugar Division 13,442.04 13,142.77
Distillery & Chemical Division 564.93 376.40
14,006.97 13,519.17
Increase / (Decrease) in Stock (1,766.02) 487.80
SCHEDULE 15 - RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED :
Sugar Division :
Sugarcane Cost 16,102.04 15,010.36
Power Division :
Bagasse 1,454.78 2,228.38
Less : Inter Unit Transfer 1,198.39 720.34
256.39 1,508.04
Distillery & Chemical Division :
Alcohol 4,106.60 947.67
Molasses 1,917.09 2,962.51
Less @ Inter Unit Transfer 1,324.83 607.81
592.26 2,354.70
Chemicals 53.38 267.85
Less : Inter Unit Transfer 11.83 22.45
41.55 245.40
21,098.84 20,066.17
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2005

(Rs. in lacs)
31.03.2005 31.03.2004
SCHEDULE 16 - MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES :

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES :

Power and Fuel 2,585.05 2,502.51
Less : Inter Unit Transfer 1,239.22 1,007.85
1,345.83 1,494.66

Packing, Forwarding and Storage 503.96 537.93
Stores, Chemicals and Spare Parts consumed 1,129.36 958.61
Less : Inter Unit Transfer 16.25 0.07
1,113.11 958.54

Excise Establishment Charges 21.37 19.98
Expenses on Scientific Research (R & D) 7.40 14.88
Contribution to Scientific Research Institution 16.45 16.11
3,008.12 3,042.10

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE :

Plant and Machinery 364.54 389.54
Buildings 88.42 109.22
Others 194.52 137.72

647.48 636.48

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS :

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,201.81 1,873.44
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Fund 169.18 169.37
Welfare Expenses 179.78 131.12
Group Gratuity Insurance Premium 84.52 85.00

2,635.29 2,258.99

OFFICE AND ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES :

Rent, Rates and Taxes 159.63 143.61
Telephone Expenses 45.22 42.92
Travelling Expenses 11115 113.32
Insurance Premium 153.37 110.94
Legal and Professional Charges 162.49 147.01
Charity and Donation 15.18 7.17
Agricultural Development Expenses 91.03 45.69
DFRC/DEPB/Sundry Written off 344.78 -
General Expenses 581.02 426.00
Impairment/Loss on sale of Assets 62.87 42.57
1726.74 1079.23

SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES : 139.66 124.80

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION :

Audit Fees/Tax Audit Fees 3.21 3.39
Certification fees Lo 0.13
Auditors’ Travelling Expenses 0.14 0.11
3.35 3.63

Cost Audit Fees and Travelling Expenses 0.37 0.40
- 372 403

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FEES AND TRAVELLING EXPENSES :

Remuneration 82.28 58.99
Fees 0.66 0.48
Travelling 69.63 48.05

152.57 107.52

8,313.58 7,253.15




SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2005

(Rs. in lacs)

31.03.2005 31.03.2004
SCHEDULE 17 - INTEREST & FINANCIAL CHARGES :
Cash Credit _ 1,153.66 1,079.78
Term Loans 1,585.56 1,579.79
Other Loans g 286.00 243.14
Hire Purchase Finance / Financial Charges 188.41 187.76
3,213.63 3,090.47
SCHEDULE 18 - COMPUTATION OF COMMISSION PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS :
Net Profit/(Loss) as per Profit and Loss Account 410.70 (235.52)
Add:
1)  Working Directors' Remuneration 82.28 58.99
ii) Depreciation 1,342.64 1,132.18
1,424.92 1,191.17
1,835.62 955.65
Add:
1}  (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset 62.87 42.57
i) Sundry Credit Balances Written off/ (Written Back) . L)
62.87 52.34
1,898.49 1,007.99
Less :
i) Depreciation to the extent specified in Section 350
of Companies Act, 1956 1,342.64 1,132.18
Net Profit /(Loss) for purposes of commission 555.85 (124.19)
Managing Director's Commission @3% on the Net Profit 16.03 -
Executive Directors Commission @1% on the Net Profit to each. 5.34 -
Total Commission payable 21.37 -
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

SCHEDULE 19

NOTES:

1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

A)

o

D)

E)

G)

)

D

System of Accounting :

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in India and the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statement requires cstimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting perod. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

Leased Assets:

Asset taken on lease is for a period not exceeding five years. Due to short period of lease, lease rental pertaining to said assets are charged
to the revenue, in the year in which it is incurred.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

i)  Fixed Assets are carried at cost of acquisition or construction. The cost of acquisition includes taxes, duties (net of excise duty/
counter veiling duty to the extent to which CENVAT credit availed) and other direct costs attributable to the cost of fixed asset.

ii)  Software is capitalised where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Capitalisation cost includes license fees,
cost of implementation/system, integration services & incidental expenses related to acquisition.

iii) Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on Straight Line Method as per the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Impairment of Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to the Profit
& Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. :

Investments:

Long Term Investments are carried at cost less provision, if any, for permanent diminution in value of such investments. Provision for
diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the
management.

Retirement Benefits:

i)  The Liability as on 31-3-2005 for accrued gratuity to employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as per Actuary's
Certificate is Rs. 698.88 Lacs (Rs.739.31 Lacs of previous year). The same is covered under Cash Accumulation Scheme of Group
Gratuity Insurance with 'Life Insurance Corporation of India" (LIC). The contribution for the year of Rs 84.53 Lacs (Previous
year Rs. 85.06 Lacs) has been paid to LIC under the said scheme.

ii) Provision for leave encashment upto 31st March 2005, payable on retirement has been made as per requirement of Accounting
Standard 15, which has been made mandatory from 1st April, 1995.

ii) Contribution to Provident Fund is accounted on accrual basis with corresponding contribution to recognized fund.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

i)  Foreign Currency Loans, if any, for financing [ixed Assets and Current Assets and Liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the
close of the financial year are revalued at the contracted and/or appropriate exchange rates.

iiy Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

iii) Fluctuation in foreign currencies amounting to Rs.5.38 lacs (previous year Rs 96.35 lacs)in respect of outstanding FCNR (B) &
FCL loan is adjusted to the outstanding loan amounts.

iv) Premium / Discount on forward contracts are amortised over the period of the contract.

Revenue Recognition:

i) Sales of goods are recognised on dispatches to the customers & includes Fxcise Duty, adjusted for discounts.

iiy Dividends are recognised when the right to reccive them is established.

iii) Credit on account of Custom Duty & other benefits, which are due to be received with a reasonable certainty, are accrued upon
completion of exports.

iv) Power Sales are recognised as per Power Purchase Agreement (PPA).

19



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

)

M)

N)

0)

P)

Q

R)

Expenditure on Research & Development:

i)  Costs of revenue nature are charged to the profit and loss account when incurred.

ii) [xpenses of capital nature arc capitalised and depreciation is provided thereon as per schedule XTV of the Companies Act, 1956.

Inventories:

a)  Raw Materials, Stores, Spares and Chemicals and Crop in Progress are valued at cost or at net realizable value whichever is less. Cost
is generally arrived at on moving average basis,

b) Finished stock & process stock are valued at cost or market price whichever is lower.
¢) Molasses, Bagasse and waste/scrap is valued at net realizable value.

d)  The valuation of inventories includes taxes, duties (net of excise duty/counter veiling duty to the extent to which CENVAT credit
availed, as well as sales tax set offs,) and other dircct costs attributable to the cost of inventory.

Excise Duty and Sales Tax:
Iixcise duty and sales tax payable on finished goods lying in the factory as on 31st March, 2005 is neither provided nor considered in
valuation of closing stock of finished goods as on 31st March, 2005. This has no impact on the financial results for the year.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure:
Deferred Revenue Fxpenditure is written off to the profit and loss account as determined by the management for a period not exceeding
five years.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing Costs that arc attributable to acquisition of or constructing of qualifying assets arc capitalized as part of the cost of such
assets. A Qualifying Asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs
arc charged to revenue.

Capital Work In Progress:
Directly identifiable pre-operative expenses of new projects under implementation of Capital nature are carried forward under Capital
Work-in-Progress, pending capitalisation to the relevant Fixed Assets.

Taxes on Income:

i) Tax on Income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961, and based on expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

i) Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year, and
quantified using the tax rates and laws cnacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet Date.

iii) Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty or virtual certainty as the
case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Government Grants:

Government grants are recognised only when there is a reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to the grants will be complied.
Government grants in the nature of Project Capital Subsidy are credited to Capital Reserve and USAID Grant.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past cvents and when a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Contingent Liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or (if) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realized.

2) SMALL SCALE & ANCILLIARY INDUSTRIES :

The name of the parties as regards amounts due to Small Scale and/or Ancillary industrial suppliers on account of principal and/or intercst
as ar the close of the year exceeding Rs. One lac for more than thirty days is given as under:

Alkali Kasture, A.G. Fngineers, Liberty Industries, Autogencous Welding & Repairs, Shaunak Chemicals, Jaishil Sulphur, Proton lngincering,
V. Plast, Patco Industrial, Satish Steel Works.

This disclosure 1s based on the information available 'with the Company'.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

3)

4)

wn

)

9)

10)

(Rs. in lacs)

31.03.05 31.03.04
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) :
Description
(A) Deferred Tax Liabilities :
Related to ixed Asstes 3642.19 3948.74
(B) Deferred Tax Assets :
Unabsorbed Depreciation 3384.20 3785.78
(A) - (B) 257.99 162.96
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Not Provided for) :
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debts :
Particulars
Sales tax liability that may arise in respect of matters in appeal 129.92 129.92
State Fxcise liability that may arise in respect of matters in appeal 79.80 79.80
Central Excise / Service Tax Liability
that may arise in respect of matters in appeal 45.87 28.72
Income Tax Liability (Including Interest)
that may arise in respect of matters in appeal 36.33 100.88
Cane Purchase Tax 29.85 -
b)  Arrears of Cumulative Preference Shares Dividend 432.00 216.00
PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS :
Cane Price of Previous years - 128.61
Insurance Premium _ - 38.21
Others 18.51 12.52
Sub Total 18.51 179.34
Less : H & 'I' Commission of Previous years Written back - 6.55
Total 18.51 172.79
Amount of borrowing costs capitalized during the period 15.58 28.98

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs 166.00 lacs. (Previous Year-Rs. NI lacs).
£ P P

TFor the Financial year, Company is cntitled for the rate of Rs 3.65 per KWIT of the energy exported as per the Power Purchase Agreement
(PPA) executed with Karnataka Power Transmission Corporation Limited (KPTCL), on 8* October 1999. However during the year under
review KP'TCL has paid the rate of Rs 3.16 per KWH (applicable rate for financial year 2002-2003) upto mid July 2004 and Rs 2.80 per
KWH as per Honorable High Court of Karnataka's interim order. The company has contested the unilateral reduction in the tariff before The
Honorable ITigh Court of Karnataka and the matter is subjudice. In the mean time Karnataka Electricity Regulatory Commission (KIERC)
have awarded that PPA approved by them before 10* June 2004 are eligible for tariff at PPA rate. In view of the said facts the Company has
recognized the income of power sales to KPTCL as per PPA rate and amount receivable from KPTCL is considered as good.

Balances of Debtors, Creditors, certain loans from Financial Insttution and Banks, certain advances are subject to confirmation.

‘The Company is eligible for a Capital subsidy from KREDL to the extent of Rs. 450 lacs which has been accounted as a Capital Reserve. The
company has received till date a sum of Rs 363.97. Further the company is eligible for USATD Grant of Rs. 425 Lacs for the Co-generation
Project, out of which the company has reccived and accounted till 31st March, 2005 Rs. 378.54 Lacs as shown under Reserves, and thercafter
Rs. 45.65 has been reccived. The Company has made its relevant application to IDBI (Nodal Agency for USATD) for the Balance amount of
Rs. 0.81 lacs, which is awaited.

34



FO'80ST

S8 Ul sy

€0'68L09°1
ST1S0'8E'T
CLW 4D

- E0'6E90L
6E'95C TETEY09L
SOE] Ul sy (LW &0

(paamdegnuely uup) 123u7) assedeg
[EEATE MEY PISEYIIN

SIE[NONIE]

JEIL SNOTADI]

J¥a} JU2LINT)

(angep 19ysuel] rup) 11U SUIPNPXF) :PIWNSUOT) PUE PISEYINJ S[ELNIEN mey (q)

05°LE0°66 006 TE T 00'EPGES 00FLGLL HAN $2m0
EHU o1 tc&un.,n— _u.upm.gu—humu EHU (93] ”_.._Qn—.m.m— ﬁUumuu:uU wum_ﬂu_uucn_
1B SNOTAIL] b=} lichsivg)
HMIN bz Aede) pafesu]

' NOISIAIQ NOLLVYENH9-00

"SSO[ ASUET) SE UMOUS SP0) 21

pue ‘()Y 2[ES 231 §O0F Aepy 15U ¢z sun( pue ooz Aepy Suunp opeg 201 se paymedsap spP) gzzcz Apuanbasqns 9104 wroonny, 1k Suid] 1e8ns 11odxe paddiysun jo spd) pZ'ET 1 MNON

96'98¢ 9€°€9¢ : Aousrimyy udaro ur pasmour sasuadxy (9)
£ 0SHE = : Aouoxinyy uSraro,g ur Sururesq (p)
YSEE 68T spoo arde) (m
: = sazedg pue sa101g (1F
7 LI s[EuaIEp mey (1

001 L1189 001 PCIL TVLOL

001 L¥'189 001 PEIL snouaSipug

z - " 3 pauoduy

n_x._r wam. Ujmw\/ c\_u Wam. DB—N&/ ﬂ-uESWECU mUuNﬂ_w mvﬁd mUuOum

9C0L0 1 3 $0C01 91 = [eI0],

e : 65101 czs paumsuoy) Jesng mey (q

9c010'51 S85'99%] SH000'91 0560511 pawmsuon) aue)) 1edng (e
3 LN B TN

1BIX SNOAI] IE3X UL

JED] SNOIARL]

183} 1U3LINT)

: (*syy ur) sayoduwuy jo anpep 110 (2)

: PaWINSUOT) PUE PISEYDINJ S[EIINEN MBY (q)

TEIZ SNOIAA] JO 2IT UM A1 MO[Pq UMOYS $2INTL] BI0N

v6'39 POFHGER 19009  02900.39 - 2 g 00882 F9 80191 FIE99E'CL
LERRY F16'16£°91 96017  08LZPIOb 00¢'s8 - - 006VEL LY $6'88 F6F 638 SISSEOJY
£2°9¢E°E1 0SS'EE690T 19°€Z€81  00209TLS T - 00€'S 000'9F1T 00004988 ] 66'T9LTL 055F99°L0'L
LSPGEOT OIEEE6EL S6e0ccc 006S6L9ST - = 0S8¥S6 1 00S0sz ST 1 CCotE el 0SSEE690°1 1edng
S LW | LW LW LN LW LW B Ul Sy LN
anpey Linuend) anpep, fpuengy fnueng) anfep Anuengy
ey wsdg 1edns-x5] padeurecy
py onoe| A3 Ul yoeq »p aFem(y 03 anp UOnINpoi g PRINIDEINUE SPO0D)
yooig Fursopy sajeg 10 *SU0D) uayer aedng | ssof % Gurssanoadal yooig Sunrad(y
adeurEC] 307 1025 Anueng)

(s ur sy

LN00SS

L W 000°01
nu[) 1pEAIRIES

128euepy A10108,] 2y Aq panniao se
fiedeny pasinn pajfeisug
faraedery pasuaory

£30108,1 a1 JO weN

: NOISIAIA ¥VOQS

: paxmioeynuew spood Jo 19adsas ur uonewroyur asneinuend) (e) (11

S00Z ‘HOUVIN ISIf AHANHT ¥VHA FHL ¥04 SLNNOJIJV HH.L 40 LYVd ONIWYO4 SHLON

33



o

. ._Om:um:ﬁca SawrpawIaiul st apAyapelady vl

@U{. uﬂmu¢~ -O U;BU«;«ZC«E u_._u B
€00 6LT 6ET “TH imdg paynINyg
SR [P 2
: - CoLl : spooD) PIPELL
€906 66 66LE SOLVET 00IC e 66 60T LY - = TH [OYOITY [EHNaN BRXH
9L 86'L29°9 $L9ZL 00°009°0F 86'LTT LY - -
“TRGYE . —IGolCe TLU1TE 000E8'LL GOTLY 1 STl T6LI9 TH (joueyag) [OYOITY 120
ger0l 68'865°12 S9'9Z1 86L0F6'81 EFEGLET €L08 9z L9l
6T 6L G 8L8G1 O16ST ZLSS00ST S8002 92 g0 63865 1T LN yEg-01g
L2601 S 66801 LOGE0T 88°L09 1YL GL69'80T 1511 6£01LEL
oLeSt 59860 8 OV 120 ¢ 8UTE008 COPGrCo L2601 66801 TH andg paynaay
 javAaIENVS L (U
- 2 0Z'8¢ 01k R
; = = - = IW neRay g
= - w51 90801 90’801
2 = - = - LI PRV 209V
1 5pooq) PapEIL
SO'lS 8012 LT9LTE ST906 1L 6L PG 11 vLTY FGLL )
A —rosL TSCLLY 86196 11 ISGO0CH SR 8P 0iC LI w0y [pH
[ 9oLl 167461 6L88LLL SO'G91'91 L6'S9 6285
VL8T €601 VOSHOL [RA] ¢1o18¢l S5 oF9L1 g prRV 280y
90'S 6¥'8C L¥'859 S9LEE0'E 1890891 €T wTl
¥o01 POt 0 6L8 Z009L¢C ShT6S ¥l 90 [ LN apdyapEIRdy
8S°LS 80°S86'S - = €SSH6'19°C Thee 69°68E'E
& E s - 6L0SS 6 85°LS 805865 TH undg paynaay
S JaVAMEVIVS LV O
(soe] ursy) (50| ursy) (S50 [BWION T50E[ ursy)
anfeEA Liuen() anfep Smuen() Fuipnpxd) anEA finuend) nuf p2InIdEjnuERy SPOOD
aseyoing [/
201§ Suso[) s3[Eg uonanpold [EMIAY }2038 m:_:un_o
000051 000051 TH (joueya) 04OV [P
000081 000°08°T TH [OYOITY [EMN2N ERXH / ymdg pagnoay
tIQVAIIHNVS LV
008°1 008'1 LW seIR0Y PO
0001 00081 LN a0y AP
00002 000'5C TN pRYy 282y
000'81 000'€Z LW aphyapay
00000 00005 TH undg pagnay
_ DIAVANVIVS LV
(ony) 0waiq £q PayRI) SV) (renuuy)
(renuuy) Kpede?) paf[esu] fapeden pasuadr] wun paImigjnuely SPeOH

: pasmoEnuewWw spood jo 10adsa.

: NOISIAIA TVOIWHHD % AMATIILSIA

3 UT UORERWIOJUT asnemuen)) ()

S007 ‘HOUVI LSI¢ adaNd

WVAA FHL Y04 SLNAODIV dH

I 40 LuVd ONIWYO0d SHLON

=
28]



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

b) Consumption of Raw Materials :

Current Year

Previous Year

Unit Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
(Rs.in lacs) (Rs.in lacs)
Molasses M.T. 29,388.40 777.32 1,24,677.85 2,354.70
Molasses (Import) M.T. 5,411.315 307.88 - -
Molasses (Inter Unit Manufactured) M.T. 45,505.28 - ' 68,700.62 -
Rectified Spirit (Own Manufactured - SAK) H.L. 55,535.87 - 2,59,350.14 -
Rectified Spirit (Own Manufactured - SMR) H.L: 15,264.27 - " -
Special Denarured Spirit (Local) H.L. 45,652.64 729.59 57,192.60 644.72
Special Denatured Spirit (Import) H.L. 2,08,211.22 2,844.87 23.870.77 302.95
Rectified Spirit Purchased H.L. 1,589.42 9.33 - 2
Acetaldehyde (Own Manufactured) M.T. 11,826.46 - 13,756.94 -
Acetic Acid (Own Manufactured) M.T. 8,564.13 - 8,568.10 -
Ethyl Acetate M.T. 71.65
Other 6,921.632 71.41 - 245.40
Total - 4,740.41 - 3,547.77
¢) C.L.F. Value of Imports (SDS): 1. 23,670.088 3410.59 12,409.50 114.09
d) Value of Raw Materials Consumed : Amount Amount
(Rs.in lacs) % (Rs.in lacs) %
i) Indigenous 1,587.66 33.49 3,244.82 91.46
ii) Imported (Chemicals including deemed) 3,152.75 66.51 302.95 8.54
Total 4,740.41 100.00 3,547.77 100.00
e) Value of Stores and Spare Parts Consumed :
i} Indigenous 216.34 100% 235.80 100%
i) Imported : - - . -
Total 216.34 100% 235.80 100%
f) Earning in Foreign Currency : 905.89 927.41
g) Expenditure in Foreign Currency :
i) For Capital Goods
a) Research & Development - ’
b) Other (including installment on Foreign Currency 85.97 88.39
Loans equivalent to Indian Rs, 85.97 lacs
(previous year Rs. 88.39 lacs)
i) Other expenses (including interest on 64.60 5B.7S
Foreign Currency Loans equivalent to Indian
Rs. 2.21 lacs (previous year Rs. 35.75 lacs))
Total - 124.14

ar




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

12)  Particulars of Segment Information as required by Accounting Standard (As-17) "Segment Reporting" :

(Rs in Lacs)
. & Distillery & et
ugar ogen Chemical ot
A  Revenue
External Sales Revenue 24.981.20 1,877.98 13,032.40 39,891.58
Inter chmcntTra.nsfers 2,720.28 1333.99 9.32 4.063.59
Other Income 247.76 3.92 104.66 356.34
B  Result
Operating Profit 1871.606 742.45 1,139.57 3,753.68
Interest Expenses 2,026.65 689.49 497.49 3,213.63
C  Other information
Share Capital Employed 1,782.55 2,801.20 3,789.45 8,373.20
Segment Assets 15,280.48 2,099.49 3,507.76 20,887.73
Segment Liabilities 22.641.13 7,015.70 3,905.04 33,561.88
Other Unallocable Corporate Assets 957.86
Capital Assets including CWIP 5,514.96 9,040.05 5,511.63 20,066.65
D Segment Depreciation 377.47 553.49 319.72 1,250.68
Unallocated Depreciation y 91.96
E Non cash expenses other than Depreciation - 62.87 62.87

Significant Accounting Policies :

1 Business segments are determined on the basis of goods manufactured and in accordance with Accounting Standard AS-17.
2 Segment Report is prepared in confirmity with accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting financial statements.

3 Inter-segment transfers are recorded at cost except for own generated Bagasse and Molasses , the cost of which are unascertainable
and which are recorded at prevalent market prices.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

13)

Related party disclosures As required by AS-18, ""Related Party Disclosure' are given below :

CATEGORY:

Subsidiaries
Godavari Investment & Finance Corporation Ltd. and Padmanabh Agencies Private Ltd.

CATEGORYII:
Key Management Personnel & Relatives
Dr. S.K.Somaiya, Mr Samir S.Somaiya, Mr P.K.R Nair, Mr PM.Kavadia and Mrs. Maya S. Somaiya

CATEGORYIII:

Associates

The Brainstorming Company (International) Private Limited, The Book Centre Limited, Akhand Warehousing Pvt. Ltd., Ashwa
Transport Pvt. Ltd., Bahar Warehousing Co. Pvt. Ltd., Dream Flower Transport Pvt. Ltd., Hamir Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd., Indigo
Investments Ltd., Jasmine Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd., Jupiter Warehousing Pvt. Ltd., K.J. Somaiya & Sons Pvt. Ltd., Karnataka Organics
Chemicals Limited, Lakshmiwadi Mines & Mineral Pvt. Ltd., Lotus Fragrance Traders Pvt. Ltd., Rajvanshi Investments Pvt. Ltd.,
Sakarwadi Trading Company Pvt. Ltd., Somaiya Agencies Pvt. Ltd., Topaz Warehousing Co. Pvt. Ltd.

Details of transactions with the related parties during the year :

(Rs in lacs)

Category I _Category II Category III

1 Remuneration : - 88.75 -

2 Interest - 9.34 38.00

3 Purchases - - 29.58

-+ Loans & Advances 0.01 - -

5 Unsecured Loans - 66.78 -

14)  Figures of previous year have been re-grouped and re-cast wherever necessary.
As per our Report of even date annexed

For DESAI SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES S.K.Somaiya  Chairman & Managing Dircctor

Chartered Accountants

Samir S. Somaiya Executive Director

N. C. Satya

Di 5
Kailash Pershad |
Dr. S. N. Desai P. M. Kavadia Whole-time Director
Partner
N. S. Khetan
Place : Mumbai Gcncrfll Manager Place : Mumbai
Date : 6™ September, 2005. (F&A) Date : 6™ September, 2005.
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

Additional information pursuant to Part IV to the Companies Act, 1956

I. Registration Details
Registration No. [ 2945 State Code
Balance Sheet Date [31 ][os || 2005
II.  Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Public Issue Right Issue
] ]
Bonus Shares Private Placement

[ NIL | | 65,000 [

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities Total Assets
| 42,1266 | \ 42,11,266 \
Sources of Funds Paid-up Capital Reserves & Surplus
[ 4,29,825 | [ 38509 |
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
[ 2344505 | | 5,26,786 |
Application of Funds Net Fixed Assets Investments
\ 21,02,451 | [ 2,385 |
Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure
| 15,90,191 | | 16,981 \
IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turnover & Other Income Total Expenditure
| 38,48,190 ] [ 3807120 ]
+ /- Profit/Loss Before Tax +/- Profit / Loss After Tax
[ +][ 41070 ] [+ ][ 26096 |
Earning per Share in Rs. Dividend Rate %
i Z 5
V. Generic Name of Three Principal Products / Services of C!)mpany (as per monetLry terms) |
Item Code No. (ITC Code) | 1701.11 ]
Product Description | suGAr \
Item Code No. (ITC Code) | 2915.10 |
Product Description ACETICACID
Item Code No. (ITC Code) 2915.90
Product Description | ETHYLACETATE |

As per our Report of even date annexed

For DESAT SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES S. K. Somaiya Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants § . < ; :
a Samir S. Somaiya Executive Director

N. C. Satya
Di §

Kailash Pershad S
Dr. 8. N. Desai P. M. Kavadia Whole-time Director
Partner

N. S. Khetan

Place : Mumbai General Manager Place : Mumbai
Date : 6" September, 2005. (F & A) Date : 6" September, 2005,
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CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005

(Rs. in Lacs)

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities : 2004-05 2003-04
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax 410.70 (235.52)

Adjusted for :

Depreciation 1,342.64 1,132.18

Interest Recetved on Fixed Deposits and Others (146.11) (127.91)

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (NET) (8.80) (254.54)

Income From Immovable Property (4.59) (3.39)

Impairment/Loss on Sale of Assets 62.87 42.57

Dividend Reccived (1.63) (2.21)

Interest Expenses 3,213.63 3,090.47

Provision for Tax (36.60) -

Prior period Adjustment (18.11) 4,403.30 (141.69) 3,735.48
Operating Profit before Working capital changes 4,814.00 3,499.96
Adjustments for :

Trade Receivables (166.72) (298.39)

Inventories 539.18 525.59

Loans & Advances 351.58 850.01

Deferred Revenue 61.89 (62.40)

Trade Payables & Provisions 385.39 1,171.32 (2,500.33) (1,485.52)
Cash generated from operations 5,985.32 2,014.44
Taxes (Provisions, payables/(reccipts)) 2.46 30.30
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY 5,987.78 2,044.74

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities :

Purchase of Fixed Assets (2,259.81) (2,881.71)

Sale of Fixed Assets 6.14 60.75

Purchase of Investments (0.20) (1.61)

Interest Received on Fixed Deposits and Others 146.11 127.91

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (NET) 8.80 254.54

Income From Immovable Property 4.59 3.39

Loss on Sale of Assets - (42.57)

Dividend Received 1.63 2.21
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,092.74) (2,477.09)

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities : )

Issue of Share Capital 650.00 -

Amounts Borrowed (Net) (2,217.42) 2,543.34

Interest paid (3,213.63) (3090.47)

Grant Received (USAID)/Capital Subsidy 307.30 225.00

—  (4473.75) - (322.13)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (578.71) (754.48)
Net changes in Cash & Cash equivalents —_—— _—

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS -

(OPENING BALANCE)

Cash & Bank Balance 956.39 624.59

Cash Credit Account (12,914.58) (11,958.19) (11,828.30) (11,203.71)

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS -

(CLOSING BALANCE)

Cash & Bank Balance 545.02 956.39

Cash Credit Account (13,081.92) (12,536.90) (12,914.58) (11,958.19)

(578.71) (754.48)

As per our Report of even date annexed

For DESAI SAKSENA & ASSOCIATES S. K. Somaiya Chatrman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants A i
Samir S. Somaiya Executive Director

N. C. Satya
Di 5

Kailash Pershad ectors
Dr. S. N. Desai P. M. Kavadia Whole-time Director
Partner

N. S. Khetan

Place : Mumbai General Manager Place : Mumbai
Date : 6" September, 2005. (F& A Date : 6* September, 2005.

41



STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,1956
RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.

IL.

2004-2005

GODAVARI INVESTMENT AND FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

1)

3)

4)

The Company holds the whole of the Subscribed Capital of Rs. 5,00,000/- in the
Subsidiary Company as at 31% March, 2005.

The Subsidiary Company made a profit of Rs. 61,294/~ after making the provision of
tax for the year Rs 5,200 /- and excess provision for eatlier year taxation Rs 881/-.
Adjusting the carried forward loss of Rs.1,06,065/-, the loss carried to balance sheet
amounted Rs 44,771/-. The said Loss has been carried to Balance Sheet of the Subsidiary
Company and no adjustment has been made in the Books of The Godavari Sugar
Mills Limited for the same.

There has been no change in the interest of the Company in the Subsidiary Company
during the year ended 31* March, 2005.

The advance to the Subsidiary Company as on 31 March, 2005 was Rs. NIL.

PADMANABH AGENCIES PRIVATE LIMITED

1)

2)

The Company also holds whole of the Subscribed Capital of Rs. 5,00,000/- in the
Subsidiary Company. There were no activities during the year in the Subsidiary Company.

The advance to the Subsidiary Company as on 31¢ March, 2005 was Rs. 700/-.

S. K. Somaiya Chairman & Managing Director

Samir S. Somaiya [Iixccutive Dircctor

N. C. Satya
: Directors
Kailash Pershad

P. M. Kavadia Whole-time Director

N. S. Khetan

General Manager Place : Mumbai

(F & A) Date : 6™ September, 2005.
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GODAVARI INVESTMENT AND FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
Godavari Investment and Finance Corporation Limited.

Your Directors submit herewith their Fiftieth Annual Report and
Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended
31st March, 2005.

Financial Results :

During the year under review, the company made profit of
Rs. 65,613/-. After making the provision for tax of Rs 5,200/~ for
the year, adjusting excess provision for tax of Rs. 881 /-and adjusting
the brought forward loss of Rs.1,06,065/-, the loss of Rs. 44,771/
- 15 carried to Balance Sheet. Your Director do not recommend for
any Dividend.

Directors :

Shri S.K.Somaiya retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

Conservation of Energy :

Your company being engaged in investment and finance activities
the particulars required to be given under the Companies (Disclosure
of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules,1988 do
not apply to the Company.

There was no expenditure/earnings in foreign exchange during the
year under report.

Particulars of Employees :

The company does not have any employee to whom the provisions
of the companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, apply.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

As required under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956
the Directors hereby confirm that:

1) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures.

ii)  The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgment and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial year
and of the profit of the Company for the year.

iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities to the best of their knowledge
and ability.

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis.

v) M/sYSMUZUMDAR & CO Chartered Accountants retire at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting, They being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

R. VENKATARAMAN
J.R.SHUKLA

Directors

Place : Mumbai Date : 6™ September, 2005.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of Godavari Investment And Finance
Corporation Limited.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Godavari Investment
And Finance Corporation Limited as at 31st March, 2005 and The
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date annexed
thereto. These Financial statements are the responsibility of the
company's management. Our Responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosure in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We Report that:

1)  The company is not covered by the Manufactuting and Other
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2003 issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 227 (4A) of
Companies Act, 1956 and hence no annexure is annexed.

2)  Further we Report that:

I.  We have obtained all the information and explanations,
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our Audit.

II.  In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by
the Law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

III. The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of
accounts.

IV, In our opinion, Profit and Loss Account and the Balance
Sheet dealt with this report comply with the Accounting
Standards as referred to in Sub section (3C) of section
211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

V. On the basis of the written representations received from
the Directors, and taken as record by the Board of
Directors, we report that none of Directoss of the company
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2005 from being
appointed as a Director in terms of clause (g) of sub
section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

VI. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
statement of Accounts together with the notes appearing
thereon give the information required by the Companies
Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view;

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of
Affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2005; and

b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of
the Profit of the Company for the year ended on
31st March, 2005.

ForY.S. MUZUMDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Y. S. MUZUMDAR

(Proprietor)

Place : Mumbai

Date : 6™ September, 2005.



GODAVARI INVESTMENT AND FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31ST MARCH, 2005

31032005 3L.03.2004 31.03.2005 31.03.2004
Schedule Rupees Rupees Rupees Schedule Rupees Rupees
SOURCE OF FUNDS : INCOME : 9 69,154 1,15,176
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS:
(a) Share Capital 1 500000 5,00,000 EXPENDITURE :
(b) Reserves & Surplus 2 1,400 1,400 Establishment and other Expenses 10 3,541 3,865
5,01,400 5,01,400 PROFIT BEFORE TAX : 65,613 1,11,311
LOANS : Provision for Taxation 5,200 9.000
(3) Secured Loans " o Add excess provision for Tax
for carlier years 881 -
(b) Unsecured Loans -
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year 61,294 1,02,311
Balance Loss brought forward
TOTAL 5,01,400 5,01,400 from last year 1,06,065 208376
APPLICATION OF FUNDS : Balance Loss carried to
Balance Sheet 44,771 1,060,065
INVESTMENTS : 3 - 7,200
Notes Forming Part of
CURRENT ASSETS : the Accounts 11
(a) Debtors 4 1,34,400 97,050
(b) Cash and Bank Balances 5 327,21 24,352
(c) Loans and Advances 6 5,195 277,598
4,66,866 3,99,000
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
& PROVISIONS :
(a) Current Liabilities 7 5,037 1,865
(b) Provisions 8 5,200 9,000
10,237 10,865
NET CURRENT ASSETS : 4,56,629 388,135
MISCELLANEOUS
EXPENDITURE :
Profit & Loss Account 44,771 1,06,065
TOTAL 5,01,400 5,01,400
As per our Report of even date As per our Report of even date
For Y. §. MUZUMDAR & CO. For Y. 5. MUZUMDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants R. VENKATARAMAN Chartered Accountants & TR
Dhrectors Directors

Y. 5. MUZUMDAR
(Proprietor)

Place : Mumbai

J. R. SHUKLA

Date : 6" September, 2005.

44

Y. . MUZUMDAR

(Proprictor)

Place : Mumbai

J. R. SHUELA

Date : 6™ September, 2005.



GODAVARI INVESTMENT AND FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

31-03-2005 31-03-2004
Rupees Rupees
SCHEDULE 1: SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED CAPITAL:
5,000  Ordinary (Equity) Shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up 5,00,000 5,00,000
ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL
5,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 5,00,000 5,00,000
(Entire Capital held by The Godavari Sugar Mills Limited - holding company) == S————
SCHEDULE 2: RESERVE AND SURPLUS
General Reserve 1,400 1,400
SCHEDULE 3: INVESTMENT
720 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each of Mamli Pvt. Ltd. - 7,200
SCHEDULE 4 : DEBTORS (Unsecured and considered good except otherwise stated) :
(a) Debts Outstanding for more than six months 89,850 7,200
(b) OtherDebts 44,450 89,850
1,34,400 97,050
SCHEDULE 5: CASH & BANKBALANCE
Cash on hand 546 146
In fixed deposit account with Scheduled Bank 3,00,000 -
In current account with Scheduled Bank 26,725 24,206
3,27,2711 24,352
SCHEDULE 6 : LOANS & ADVANCES - -
Loans to cane growers 4,338 4,338
Income tax 857 5,029
Advances - 800
Loans to Companies - 2,067,431
5,195 2,77,598
SCHEDULE 7: CURRENT LIABILITIES -
Sundry Creditors 1,122 1,040
Income Tax Payable 3,915 825
5,037 1,865
SCHEDULE 8: PROVISIONS
Provision for Income Tax for the year 5,200 9,000
SCHEDULE 9: INCOME
Interest Received 11,804 21,926
Sundry Balance Written Back 44,550 93,250
Profit on Sales of Investments 12,800 -
69,154 1,15,176
SCHEDULE10: ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES
Professional Tax 1,700 1,700
Miscellaneous Expenditure - 500
Fees & Stamp 600 600
Bank Charges 25 25
Audit Fees 1,216 1,040
3,541 3,865
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GODAVARI INVESTMENT AND FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2005
SCHEDULE :11 NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

Significant Accounting Policy

1. L. ACCOUNTING CONCEPT

Financial Statements are drawn using the historical cost convention, adopting on accrual basis. Accounting policies not referred to
otherwise, are in consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. INVESTMENTS

Investment are stated at cost and are in the nature of long term investments

3. The requirements of schedule VI to the Companies Act,1956, regarding additional information are not applicable to the company.

4. No provision for gratuity payment has been made in the books as The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is not applicable to the

company.

5. Previous vears figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
I'y

As per our Report of even date

ForY.S. MUZUMDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants R. VENKATARAMAN
Directors
Y. S. MUZUMDAR J.R.SHUKLA
(Proprietor)
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 6™ September, 2005. Date : 6™ September, 2005.
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PADMANABH AGENCIES PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
Padmanabh Agencies Private Limited.

Yours Directors submit herewith Seventh Annual Report and
Audited Statements of Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2005.

The Company has not yet commenced any business activity.
Your Directors are exploring possibilities of commencing
Business Activities.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

As required under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies
Act,1956 the Directors hereby confirm that:

1) Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures.

ii)  the accounting policies of the Company have consistently
followed and estimates have been made reasonable and
prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year.

iif) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

tv) annual accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 related to conservation of energy
are not applicable to the company. The company has neither
used nor earned foreign exchange during the year under review.

Director Shri P. M.Kavadia retires by rotation, but being eligible,
offers himself for reappointment.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company does not have any employee to whom the
companies (particulars of employees) Rules, 1975 apply.

AUDITORS:

M/s Y.SMuzumdar & Co., Charatered Accountants, Auditors
of the company retire at the ensuing annual general meeting,
They being eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

S. K. SOMAIYA
P. M. KAVADIA | Directors

Place : Mumbai Date : 6™ September, 2005,
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of Padmanabh Agencies Private Limited.
We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Padmanabh
Agencies Pvt. Ltd. as at 31st March, 2005. Since the Company
has not commenced commetcial activity, no Profit and Loss

Account has been prepared. These Financial statements are the

responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosure in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

We Report that:

1)  the company is not covered by the Manufacturing and Other
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2003 issued by the
Central Governement of India in terms of section 227
(4A) of Companies Act, 1956 and hence no annexure is
annexed.

2) Further we Report that :

I. We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our Audit.

I1. In our opinion, proper Books of Accounts as required
by Law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

ITI. The Balance Sheet dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of Accounts.

IV. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet dealt comply with
by this report comply with the Accounting Standards
as referred to in Sub section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 ;

V. On the basis of the written representations received
from the Directors, and taken as record by the Board
of Directors, we report that none of Directors of the
company is disqualified as on 31st March, 2005 from
being appointed as Directors in terms of clause (g) of
sub section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act,
1956;

VI. In our opinion and to the best of our information
and accotding to the explanation given to us, the said
statement of Accounts together with the notes
appearing thereon give the information required by
the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required
and give a true and fair veiw of the Balance Sheet of
the state of Affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2005.

For Y. 8. MUZUMDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Y. S. MUZUMDAR
(Proprietor)

Place : Mumbai Date : 6" September, 2005.



PADMANABH AGENCIES PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2005

31.03.2004 LIABILITIES 31.03.2005 31.03.2004 ASSETS 31.03.2005
Rupees Rupces Rupees Rupces Rupees
1. AUTHORISED CAPITAL : I. CASH AND BANK BALANCES :
10,00,000 1,00,000 Shares of Rs.10/- cach 10,00,000 505,412 Cash at Bank 4,69,792
II. SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL : II. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE :
5,00,000 50,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- cach 5,00,000 30,728 Preliminary Expenses 31,979
Fully paid up

(Entire Capital held by
The Godavari Sugar Mills Limited
- holding company)

III. CURRENT LIABILITIES AND

PROVISIONS :
35,100 Loans from The Godavari
Sugar Mills Ltd. 700
1,040 Outstanding Expenses 1,071
36,140 1,771
5,36,140 TOTAL 5,01,771 5,36,140 TOTAL 5,01,771

Since Commercial Activity has not commenced till 31st March, 2005, no Profit and Loss Account has been prepared.

Accompanying to our Report of even date annexed The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in
excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
For Y. S. MUZUMDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
S. K. SOMAIYA
Directors
Y. S. MUZUMDAR P. M. KAVADIA
(Proprietor)
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 6™ September, 2005. Date : 6" September, 2005.
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